IN THE UNI TED STATES DI STRI CT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DI STRI CT OF PENNSYLVAN A

M CLARK McCUTCHEON ) ClVIL ACTI ON
V.

AMERI CA' S SERVI CI NG COVPANY, )
et al. ) NO. 06-03121-JF

ADJUDI CATI ON

Fullam Sr. J. July 31, 2007

This is an action by a honmeowner agai nst a nortgage | ender,
a nortgage servicing conpany, and a nortgage broker for alleged
violations of the Real Estate Settlenent Procedures Act of 1974,
12 U.S.C. 8§ 2605, the Federal Truth-in-Lending Act, 15 U S.C.

8 1601 et seq. (“TILA"), and the Pennsylvania Unfair Trade
Practices and Consumer Protection Law, 73 Pa. Stat. 8 201 et seq.
The underlying facts can be sunmarized as foll ows:

Plaintiff, a college-educated, retired mlitary officer in
his early 70s, received a tel ephone call in the fall of 2005 from
Uni ted Hone Savings, LLC (“United”), a |oan broker. Through
United, plaintiff obtained a $405, 000 nortgage on his residence.
O that anmobunt, plaintiff realized a total of $10,887.57 at
settlement. The bal ance of the nortgage |oan (after deduction of
generous settlenment costs) was expended in satisfying two prior
nortgages in the total anount of $283,032, and the bal ance due on

11 credit cards, aggregating $83,248. The settlenment was held at



plaintiff’s honme on the evening of Decenber 23, 2005. The

nort gage | ender was Frenont | nvestnent & Loan Conpany
(“Frenmont”). America’s Servicing Conpany (“ASC’) began servicing
the nortgage as of May 1, 2006. Wthin a few nonths, plaintiff
st opped nmaki ng nortgage paynents (at approxi mately $3,400, the
nort gage paynents exceeded his nonthly incone by approxi mately
$1,500). Plaintiff acknow edged that he did not read the
docunents associated with the transaction until early 2006.

On May 26, 2006, plaintiff’s counsel sent a letter to
Fremont and ASC, requesting information and demandi ng resci ssion
of the loan. Frenont responded, after a fashion, but ASC did not.
Plaintiff filed suit in July of 2006. United did not answer the
conplaint, and default (but not default judgnent) has been
entered against it.

The remai ning parties appeared for a non-jury trial on July
30, 2007. At trial, plaintiff sought to establish that he was
overcharged for title insurance and did not receive variable rate
di scl osures, and that these violations of the TILA were materi al
so as to entitle himto rescind the transaction w thout repaynent
of the nortgage proceeds or alternatively to an award of
statutory damages; and that ASC viol ated RESPA by failing to

respond to his nortgage inquiry.



CONCLUSI ONS OF LAW

Plaintiff filed this suit within the one-year period
required by the TILA to chall enge disclosure violations.

Plaintiff has established that the insurance charge was
overstated by approximately $668. Defendants contend that any
overage is within the tolerance allowed by law. The statute
provi des that:

(f) Tol erances for accuracy

In connection with credit transactions not under an

open end credit plan that are secured by real property

or a dwelling, the disclosure of the finance charge and

ot her disclosures affected by any finance charge-

(1) shall be treated as being accurate for purposes of

this subchapter if the amount disclosed as the finance

char ge-

(A) does not vary fromthe actual finance
charge by nore than $100; or

(B) is greater than the anmpbunt required to be
di scl osed under this subchapter; and

(2) shall be treated as being accurate for purposes of
section 1635 of this title [rescission] if-

(A) except as provided in subparagraph (B)
t he amount di scl osed as the finance charge
does not vary fromthe actual finance charge
by nore than an anmount equal to one-half of
one percent of the total anount of credit
ext ended] . ]
15 U.S.C. 8§ 1605(f); see also 12 CF. R § 226.23(g). For
pur poses of rescission, the insurance overstatenent is indeed

within the allowed tol erance of $2,025 on a $405, 000 nort gage.
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For purposes of statutory damages, it exceeds the $100 cap, and |
therefore hold that defendant Frenont is |liable for statutory
damages in the anount of $1000, plus reasonabl e counsel fees. 15
U S.C. § 1640.

Because ASC was not the initial servicer of the nortgage, it
can be liable for violations of the TILA only if any violations
were apparent on the face of the docunents. See 15 U S.C. § 1641.
| conclude that the violation was not so obvious, and therefore
plaintiff cannot recover against this defendant.

Plaintiff’s other clainmed TILA violation concerns the
vari abl e rate disclosures and whether plaintiff received themin
atinmly manner. 12 CF. R 8§ 226.19. Plaintiff has not nmet his
burden on this claim there is no dispute that he received al
requi red di sclosures, and plaintiff acknow edged that he did not
read any of the rel evant docunents until sone tinme after the
closing. Plaintiff is not entitled to rescission or to statutory
damages on this claim

Plaintiff also asserts a claimagainst ASC under the Real
Estate Settlenment Procedures Act (RESPA), 12 U S.C. 8§ 2605. ASC
is a servicer of a federally-related nortgage | oan w thin RESPA,
and the May 26, 2006 letter to ASC was a “qualified witten
request” within the neaning of RESPA, to which defendant ASC

failed to respond. Under RESPA, the |oan servicer nust



acknow edge receipt of the borrower's request within 20 days of
recei pt thereof. See 12 U S.C. 8§ 2605(e)(1)(A).

Al t hough there may have been a violation of RESPA,
Plaintiff did not claimany actual damages as a result of the
violation, and the failure to respond to a single letter does not
establish a pattern or practice of nonconpliance by ASC.

Hut chi nson v. Delaware Sav. Bank FSB, 410 F. Supp. 2d 374 (D.N. J.

2006). Plaintiff is not entitled to recover danmages on Count ||

of the Conpl aint.



IN THE UNI TED STATES DI STRI CT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DI STRI CT OF PENNSYLVAN A
M CLARK McCUTCHEON : ClVIL ACTI ON
V.

AVERI CA* S SERVI CI NG COVPANY, :
et al. : NO. 06-03121-JF

ORDER

AND NOW this 31st day of July 2007, IT IS ORDERED:

1. JUDGMVENT is ENTERED in favor of the Defendant, America’s
Servi cing Conpany, and against the plaintiff, M Cark
McCut cheon.

2. JUDGVENT is ENTERED in favor of the plaintiff,
M d ark MCutcheon, and agai nst the defendant, Frenont
| nvest ment & Loan Conpany, in the sum of $1000.

3. Plaintiff may submt an application for counsel
fees within 10 days, and defendant may respond within 5 days
t hereafter.

4. Plaintiff shall file a notion for default judgnent
agai nst Defendant United Honme Savings, LLC. within 20 days of the

date of this Order.

BY THE COURT:

[s/ John P. Fullam
John P. Full am Sr. J.




